BSR&Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Building No. 10, 8th Floor, Tower-B Telephone: +91 124 719 1000
DLF Cyber City, Phase - li Fax: +91 124 235 8613
Gurugram - 122 002, India

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Minda Vast Access Systems Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the Financial Statements of Minda Vast Access Systems Limited (“the Company™), which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2020, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the Financial Statements, including a summary of the significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2020, and loss and other comprehensive income,
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the Financial Statements.

Other Information

The Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the Other Information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company's Board Report, but does not include the
financial statement and our auditors' report thereon. The Company's Board Report is expected to be made
available to us after the date of the Auditor's Report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Management's and Board of Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs, profit/loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company
in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial Statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to
Financial Statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures in the Financial Statements made by the Management and Board of Directors.
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¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. [f we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditot’s
report to the related disclosures in the Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

l. As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. (A) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Ind AS specified under section
133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2020 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2020 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.
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f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to Financial
Statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure B”.

(B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2020 on its
financial position in its Financial Statements - Refer Note 2.30 to the Financial Statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company;

iv. The disclosures in the Financial Statements regarding holdings as well as dealings in specified
bank notes during the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016 have not been made
in these Financial Statements since they do not pertain to the financial year ended 31 March
2020.

(C) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under section 197(16):

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is a
private limited company and accordingly the requirements as stipulated by the provisions of section
197(16) are not applicable to the Company.

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 101248 W/W-100022

N

Shashank Agarwal
Partner
Place: Gurugram Membership No.: 095109
Date: 26 June 2020 UDIN: 20095109AAAADW9918
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Annexure A referred to in our Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on financial statements of Minda
Vast Access Systems Private Limited on the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2020.

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report of even date

(M

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

)

(a)

(b)

(c)

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has maintained proper
records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of fixed assets (property,
plant and equipment).

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has a regular programme
of physical verification of its property, plant and equipment by which all fixed assets (property, plant
and equipment) are verified over the period of three years. In accordance with this programme,
certain fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the current year. In our
opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its assets. As informed to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on
such verification.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the title deeds of the immovable property is held in the name of the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the inventories, except good-in-transit
and stock lying with third parties, have been physically verified by the management at the year end.
In our opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the
Company and nature of its business. For stocks lying with third parties as at the year-end, written
confirmation have been obtained. As informed to us, the discrepancies noticed on comparison of
physical verification of inventories with book records were not material and have been properly dealt
with in the books of account.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not
granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies covered in the register maintained under
section 189 of the companies Act, 2013. Further there are no Firms or Limited Liability Partnership
or other parties covered in the register required under section 189 of the companies Act 2013.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not given any loan, or provided any guarantee or
security or made any investment as specified under section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.
Accordingly, paragraph 3 (iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

As per the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits as
mentioned in the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Section 73 to
76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed there under. Accordingly, para
3(v) of the Order is not applicable.
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(vi) The Central Government has prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of
section 148 of the Act for activities carried out by the Company. We have broadly reviewed the
books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the Rules made by the Central
Government for the maintenance of cost records under Section 148 of the Act, and are of the opinion
that prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. However, we
have not made a detail examination of the cost records.
(vii) (@) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, amounts deducted / accrued in the books of account in respect of
undisputed statutory dues including Provident fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Goods
and Services Tax (‘GST”), Duty of customs and other material statutory dues have generally been
regularly deposited during the year by the Company with the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect
of Provident fund, Income-tax, GST, Service tax, Duty of excise, Sales tax, Value added tax, Duty
of customs and other material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2020 for a period of
more than six months from the date they became payable.

Also refer note 2.30, wherein, it is explained that on account of the uncertainty with respect to the
applicability of the Hon'ble Supreme Court Judgement on the provident fund matter, management
has not recognised and deposited any additional provident fund amount with respect to the previous
years.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues in respect of Income
tax, GST, Sales-tax, Service tax, Duty of custom, Duty of excise and Value added tax which have
not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute except for the

following:
Name of the Nature of Financial Forum where Amount Amount
Statute dues year to which dispute is (Rs. in | paid under
amount pending million)* | protest (Rs.
relates in millions)
Income-tax Income-tax 2015-2016 Assessing 6.69
Act, 1961 officer
Income-tax Income-tax 2013-2014 Income Tax 3.99 -
Act, 1961 Appellate
Tribunal
Finance Service tax 2013-2014 CESTAT 9.52 0.95
Act, 1994
Central Excise Excise May 2014- Office of 1.96 -
Act, 1944 August 2014 | Commissioner,
Central Excise
Central Excise Excise June 2017- Office of 0.25 -
Act, 1944 June 2018 Commissioner,
Central Excise
Central Excise Excise 2012-2013 to Directorate 6.93 -
Act, 1944 2016-2017 General of
Goods and
Service Tax

*amount as per demand orders including interest and penalty wherever indicated in the said orders.
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(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

According to the information and explanations given to us, there is no default existing at the balance
sheet date in repayment of loans or borrowings to banks and a financial institution. The Company
did not have any outstanding dues to any debenture holder and government during the years.

The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year. The term loans were applied for the purposes for which
those were raised to the extent utilised during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the Company and
neither any material fraud on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported
during the course of our audit.

The Company is a private limited Company and accordingly the requirements as stipulated by the
provisions of section 197 read with schedule V to the act are not applicable to the Company.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xi) of the order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is a private limited Company and accordingly the requirements as stipulated by the
provisions of section 177 of the Act are not Applicable to the Company. According to the
information and explanations given to us, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with
section 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement
of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered into any
non-cash transactions with directors or person connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xv)
of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to be
registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm registration number: 10

NS

Shashank Agarwal
Partner

248W/ W-100022

Place: Gurugram Membership number: 095109
Date: 26 June 2020 UDIN: 20095109AAAADW9918
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s report on the Financial Statements of Minda Vast Access
Systems Private Limited for the period ended 31 March 2020.

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid Financial Statements under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

(Referred to in paragraph 2A(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements of Minda Vast Access
Systems Private Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the
Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference
to Financial Statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2020,
based on the internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (the “Guidance Note™).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter
referred to as “the Act”).

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to Financial
Statements were established and maintained and whether such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to Financial Statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements included obtaining an understanding of
such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating
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the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Financial
Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements include those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Financial Statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the Financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to Financial Statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For BS R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

IQTirm Registration No.: 10248 W/W-100022
S gead

Shashank Agarwal
Partner
Place: Gurugram Membership No.: 095109
Date: 26 June 2020 UDIN: 20095109AAAADWI9918



Minda Vast Access Systems Private Limited

Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2020

(Rs. in million)

Note As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 2.1 599 341
Capital work-in progress 2.1 22 365
Right-of-use assets 2.1a,2.31 28 -
Intangible assets 2.1b 28 33
Intagible assets under development 2.1b 41 -
Financial assets
Loans 22 6 6
Non-current tax asset 2.3 30 25
Deferred tax assets (Net) 221 49 20
Other non-current assets 24 i -
804 790
Current assets
Inventories 2.5 182 187
Financial assets
i. " Investments 2.6 - 24
ii.  Trade receivables 2.7 189 278
iii.  Cash and cash equivalents 2.8 29 10
iv.  Other bank balances 29 60 120
v, Other financial assets 2.10 7 11
Other current assets 2.11 109 95
576 725
TOTAL 1,380 1,515
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity share capital 2.12 427 427
Other equity 2,13 468 529
895 956
LIABILITIES
Non-curcent linbilities
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 2.14 2 3
Provisions 2,15 37 35
39 38
Cureent linhilities
Financial Liabilities
i.  Trade payables 2.16
-Total dues of micro and small enterprises 46 5
-Total dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 274 333
ii.  Other financial liabilities 2.17 23 88
Other current liabilities 2.18 63 51
Provisions 2.19 27 31
Current tax liabilities 2.20 13 13
446 521
TOTAL 1,380 1,515

Significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes forn an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

lFor BSR & Co, LLP
Chartered Accountanis
Firm registration number: 101248W/W-100)

gyt

Shashank Aganval
Pariner
Membership No.: 095109

Place: Gurugram
Date: 26 June 2020

1<or and on behalf of the Board of Difectors of
Minda Vast Access Systems Private Limited

(Pt

Ashok Minda
Director
(LN 005472700

“Kahtosti 1 l-\‘nlrt.-
CFO
(PAN- AFIPK+41221.)

Place: P COAR.

Date: 26 June 2020

v

Ashim Vohra
Managing Director
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Komen .5, Heda
Company Secretary .
Membership No.: A34786
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Minda Vast Access Systems Private Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2020

(Rs. in million)

For the year ended

For the year crded

Note 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Revenue from operations 222 1,629 2,283
Other income 2.23 60 101
Total income 1,689 2,384
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 224 1,219 1,634
Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and work-1n-progress 225 (6) 12
Employee benefits expenses 2.26 266 300
Finance costs 2.27 2 1
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 2.1,21a 81 74
Other expenses 2.28 214 269
Total expenses 1,775 2,290
(Loss)/Profit before tax (86) 94
Current tax 2.21 21
Tax expense for earlier years * - 6
Deferred tax (credit) / charge 2.21 (28) (2)
(Loss)/Profit for the year (58) 69
AAmount in absolute Rs. 218,000 for year ended 31 March 2020
Other comprehensive income
Item that will not be reclassified subsequent to profit or loss
Remeasurements of defined benefit liabilities 4) |
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss | B
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 3) 1
Total comprehensive income for the year (61) 70
Earnings per equity share |[Par value of Rs.10 (previous year Rs.10) per 2,131
equity share|
(Loss)/Earnings per share (Rs.) (Basic) (1.37) 2.84
(Loss)/Eamings per share (Rs.) (Diluted) (1.37) 2.84
Significant accounting policies 1
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
For BSR & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board gf Directors of
Chartered Accountants Minda Vast Access Systems Priyate Limited
Siem.[epistration number: 101248W 0022
N - "‘1 4 -
Shashank Agary Ashok Minda Ashim Vohra
Partner Director Managing Director
Membership No.: 095109 (DIN 00054727) (?llN (‘.300(7:222)
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Minda Vast Access Systems Private Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2020

A. Equity share capital
(Rs. in million)

Particulars Amount
Balance as at April 1, 2018 427
Changes in equity share capital during the year -
Balance s at March 31, 2019 427
Balance as at April 1, 2019 427
Changes 1n equity share capital during the year -
Balance as at March 31, 2020 427

B. Othcr equity

(Rs. in million)

Reserves and surplus (1) items of Other Comprchensive
Income (1) Total
Securities premium  Retained earnings R ement of defined
reserve benefit obligations
Asat 31 March 2018 125 337 3 459
Profit for the year . 69 : 70
Other comprehensive income b - . -
Total comprehensive income for the year 69 | 70
As at 31 March 2019 125 406 (2) 529
As at 31 March 2019 125 406 (2) 529
Profit for the year - (58) 3) 61
Other comprehensive income - - - -
Transfer to retained earnings (5) 5 -
Total comprehensive i for the year - (63) 2 (61)
As at 31 March 2020 125 343 - 468
Note:
(1) Refer note 2.13.2 for nature and purpose of other equity
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
for BSR & Co. LLP I'or and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountanty Minda Vast Access Systems Private kimited
Firm registration nimber: 101248W/ 0322
Qy <3 : '
. N ) :
Shashank Agarwal Ashok Minda Ashim Vohra
Partner Director Managing Director
Membership No.: 095109 (NN I'HNJ_.‘UF'.’?} (DIN 00075222)
Paw ! G Place! &
Vodel Lt Tuat o yo Dok L6 T a8
Oz Ksﬁ&;o\wf
/.- ! / . . -
antosh Katre Komal G.8. Heda
CFO Company Secretary
(PAN- AFIPK4122L) Membership No.: A34786
Place: Gurugram Place: Fua/\,\
e Placa' Pava

Date: 26 June 2020 Date: 26 June 2020 Oade? 2é It 2030



Minda Vast Access Systems Private Limited
Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended 31 March 2020

(Rs. in million)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
A, Cash flew from operating activities
(Loss) / profit before taxation (86) 94
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 81 74
Interest expense 2 1
(Gain) / loss on sale / discard of fixed assets (6) 1
Bad debts 1 -
Unrealised foreign exchange loss - 2
Interest income N (12)
Dividend income )] (8)
Liabilities / provision no longer required written back (44) (75)
(Profit) on sale / discard of investments - n
Operating profit before working capital changes (60) 76
Adjustments for:
Decrease / (Increase) in trade receivables 132 (54)
Decrease in inventories 4 39
(Increase) / Decrease in loans, other financial assets and other assets (12) 74
Increase in other financial liabilitics and other liabilities 15 76
Decrease in trade payables (19) (79)
Decrease in other provisions (7) -
Cash generated from operations 54 132
Income tax paid (5) (1)
Net cash generated from operating activities (A) 49 121
B. Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of Property, plant & equipment and intangible assets (142) (365)
Proceed from sale of property, plant & equipment and intangible assets 18 3
Purchase of current / non current investments (826) (1,702)
1 8

Dividend received
31

Movement in bank deposits (net) 60
Proceeds from maturity of investment 852 1,831
Interest received 9 17
Net cash (used in) investing activities (B) (28) (178)
C. Cash flows from financing activities#
Receipt of borrowings | 4
Repayment of borrowings m n
Interest paid (2) (N
Net cash [rom financing activities (C) 2) 2
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C) 19 (55)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 10 65
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 29 10
# Refer note 2.14.1 for change in liabilities arising from financing activities.
Notes to Cash Flow Statement:
1. The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method set out in Ind AS 7 "Statement of Cash Flows"
2. Cash and cash equivalents consists of cash in hand and balances with scheduled banks. Refer note 2.8.
Significant accounting policics 1
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
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* Mind2Past Ass Systems Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

1. Reporting entity

The Company was incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956 on 3 January 2007. During the financial
year 20152016, the Company became joint venture, w.e.f, 1 May 2015 between Minda Management
Services Ltd. (now merged with Minda Corporation Limited) and Vehicle Access Systems Technology,
LLC, USA having equal share. The Company is a market leader in security systems for the automotive
industry. The Company manufactures products such as Locks and Keys, Steering Column Locks,
Immobilizers, Latches, External and Internal Door Handles.

2. Significant accounting policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

A. Basis of preparation

(i) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013, (the 'Act), Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules,
2016 and other relevant provisions of the Act (“financial statements”).

The financial statements were authorized for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 26 June

2020.

(ii) Functional and presentation currency

The management has determined the currency of the primary economic environment in which the
Company operates i.e., functional currency, to be Indian Rupees (Rs.). All amounts have been rounded-
off to the nearest million Rupees unless otherwise indicated. Further, at some places -’ are also put up
to values below Rs. 500,000 to make financials in round off to Rupees in millions.

(iii) Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items:

Mtems

Measurement Basis

derivatives instruments)

Certain financial assets and liabilities (including

Fair Value

 Arrangements
Net defined benefit (asset)/ liability

(iii) Use of estimates and judgement

"Liabilities for equity-settled share-based payment

| Fair Value

Fair value of plan assets less present value of

_ g_eﬁned_ lzeneﬁt_ obligations

In preparation of these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates, and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assels and
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
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Minda Vast Access Systems Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

Judgements, estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future
periods affected. In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical
judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements is included in the following notes.

. Recognition and estimation of tax expense including deferred tax— Note 2.21

. Assessment of useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible asset — Note 2.1 and
2.1b

. Estimation of obligations relating to employee benefits: key actuarial assumptions —Note 2.15.2

. Valuation of Inventories — Note 2.5

. Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingency: Key assumption about the
likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources — Note 2.30

. Fair value measurement — Note 2.37

iv) Measurement of fair values

A number of accounting policies and disclosures require measurement of fair values, for both financial
and non-financial assets and liabilities.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the
valuation techniques.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in
the valuation techniques as follows:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as
far as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different
levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the
same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire
measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
period during which the change has occurred.: Also, fair value of financial instruments measured at

amortised cost is disclosed in Note 2.38.
Current-non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification.

Assets:

An asset is treated as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
It is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal
operating cycle;
It is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

_———__ It is expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date; or

: Mi is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a



Minda Vast Access Systems Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

The Company classifies all other assets as non-current.

Liabilities:

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

(1) Itis expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle;

(2) It is held primarily for the purpose of being traded,;

(3) It is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or

(4) The Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty,
result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities respectively.

Operating cycle
Operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash
or cash equivalent

Summary of significant accounting policies
i) Foreign currency transactions and translations

Functional and presentation currency

The management has determined the currency of the primary economic environment in which the
Company operates i.e., functional currency, to be Indian Rupees. All amounts have been rounded-off to

the nearest million Rupees unless otherwise indicated.

Transactions and Balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the
dates of transactions and monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies as at the
balance sheet date, are translated at the balance sheet date exchange rates. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date exchange rates are generally
recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets and
liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. For example, translation
differences on non-monetary assets and liabilities such as equity instruments (other than investment in
subsidiaries and joint ventures) held at fair value through profit or loss are recognized in statement of
profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss and translation differences on non-monetary assets
such as equity investments (other than investment in subsidiaries and joint ventures) classified as
FVOCI are recognized in other comprehensive income.

ii) Revenue Recognition

~Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the

Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made.
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Minda Vast Access Systems Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account
contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the
government.

However, Goods and Services Tax (GST) is not received by the Company on its own account. Rather, it
is tax collected on value added to the commodity by the seller on behalf of the government.
Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue.

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognized.

Sale of goods

The Company recognized revenue when (or as) a performance obligation was satisfied, i.e. when
‘control’ of the goods underlying the particular performance obligation were transferred to the customer.

Further, revenue from sale of goods is recognized based on a 5-Step Methodology which is as follows:
Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligation in contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for volume
discounts, service level credits, performance bonuses, price concessions and incentives, if any, as
specified in the contract with the customer. Revenue also excludes taxes collected from customers.

Contract assets are recognised when there is excess of revenue earned over billings on contracts.
Contract assets are classified as unbilled receivables (only act of invoicing is pending) when there is
unconditional right to receive cash, and only passage of time is required, as per contractual terms.

Unearned or deferred revenue is recognised when there is billings in excess of revenues.

Contracts are subject to modification to account for changes in contract specification and requirements.
The Company reviews modification to contract in conjunction with the original contract, basis which
the transaction price could be allocated to a new performance obligation, or transaction price of an
existing obligation could undergo a change. In the event transaction price is revised for existing
obligation, a cumulative adjustment is accounted for.

Use of significant judgements in revenue recognition:

a) The Company’s contracts with customers could include promises to transfer products to a
customer. The Company assesses the products promised in a contract and identifies distinct
performance obligations in the contract. Identification of distinct performance obligation involves
judgement to determine the deliverables and the ability of the customer to benefit independently

from such deliverables.

b) Judgement is also required to determine the transaction price for the contract. The transaction price
could be either a fixed amount of customer consideration or variable consideration with elements
such as volume discounts, service level credits, performance bonuses, price concessions and
incentives. The transaction price is also adjusted for the effects of the time value of money if the
contract includes a significant financing component. Any consideration payable to the customer is

= tadjusted to the transaction price, unless it is a payment for a distinct product or service from the

'

custamer. The estimated amount of variable consideration is adjusted in the transaction price only
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Minda Vast Access Systems Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative
revenue recognised will not occur and is reassessed at the end of each reporting period. The
Company allocates the elements of variable considerations to all the performance obligations of
the contract unless there is observable evidence that they pertain to one or more distinct
performance obligations.

¢) The Company uses judgement to determine an appropriate selling price for a performance
obligation. The Company allocates the transaction price to each performance obligation on the
basis of the relative selling price of each distinct product or service promised in the contract.

d) The Company exercises judgement in determining whether the performance obligation is satisfied
at a point in time or over a period of time. The Company considers indicators such as how
customer consumes benefits as services are rendered or who controls the asset as it is being created
or existence of enforceable right to payment for performance to date and alternate use of such
product or service, transfer of significant risks and rewards to the customer, acceptance of delivery
by the customer, etc.

Export benefits

Export incentive entitlements are recognized as income when the right to receive credit as per the terms
of the scheme is established in respect of the exports made, and where there is no uncertainty regarding
the ultimate collection of the relevant export proceeds.

Other operating income

Service income including job work income is recognized as per the terms of contracts with customers
when the related services are rendered. Income from royalty, technical know-how arrangements is
recognized on an accrual basis in accordance with the terms of the relevant agreement.

Dividend and interest income

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive the income is established. Income from
interest on deposits, loans and interest-bearing securities is recognized using the effective interest
method.

iii) Property, plant and equipment

(a) Recognition and measurement

Item of property, plant and equipment are carried at cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated
depreciation. Cost comprises the purchase price and any cost attributable for bringing the asset to its
working condition for its intended use.

Advance paid towards the acquisition of fixed assets are shown under non-current asset and tangible
fixed assets under construction are disclosed as capital work-in-progress. Capital work in progress
includes cost of assets at site, direct and indirect expenditure incidental to construction and interest on
the funds deployed for construction.

(b) Subsequent costs

~Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as
_,'app__ropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component

{6
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Minda Vast Access Systems Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when replaced. The costs of the day to day servicing
of property, plant and equipment are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred.

(c¢) Derecognition

Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing
the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment, and are
recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

(d) Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on the straight-line method at the rates
reflective of the estimated useful life of the assets estimated by the management.

Depreciation on addition to property plant and equipment is provided on pro-rata basis from the date the
assets are ready to use. Depreciation on sale/deduction from property, plant and equipment is provided
upto the date of sale, deduction as the case may be.

Premium paid on leasehold land and site development is amortised over the period of lease. Leasehold
Improvements are amortised on the straight-line basis over the lower of primary period of.

Depreciation on leased assets is in line with the depreciation policy of the Company and is depreciated
over the lower of useful life of such assets and the lease period.

Pursuant to this policy, depreciation on fixed assets has been provided at the rates based on useful lives
of fixed assets specified in Schedule IT of the Companies Act, 2013 except for the following category of
asset where useful life is estimated by management based on internal technical assessment.

Category of asset Useful life (in years)
Factory building and office building 20
Plant and Machinery 10

iv) Intangible Asset
a) Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets comprises computer software and patents at cost less accumulated amortization and
accumulated impairment, if any.

Cost of intangible assets under development as at the reporting date are disclosed as intangible assets
under development.

b) Subsequent costs

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to

the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
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(d) Derecognition

Gains and losses on disposal of an item of intangible assets are determined by comparing the proceeds
from disposal with the carrying amount of intangible assets and are recognized in the statement of profit
and loss.

(e) Amortisation

The intangible assets are amortised over the period of five years, which in the management’s view
represent the economic useful life. Amortisation expense is charged on a pro-rata basis for assets
purchased during the year. The amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period.

V) Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or development of
qualifying assets are capitalized. Capitalization of borrowing costs ceases when substantially all the
activities necessary to prepare the qualifying assets for their intended uses are complete. Qualifying
assets are assets which take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale.
Borrowing costs include exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent
that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs. Other borrowing costs are recognized as an
expense in the consolidated statement of profit and loss in the year in which they are incurred.

vi) Inventories

Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. The basis of determination of cost for
various categories of inventory is as follows:

Raw materials, components and stores : Cost is determined on weighted average basis.
and spares and stock in trade

Finished goods . Lower of cost and net realizable value. Material
cost plus appropriate share of Labour and
production overheads. Cost of finished goods
includes excise duty, wherever applicable

Work in progress . Material cost plus appropriate share of the Labour
and production overheads depending upon the
stage of completion, wherever applicable.

Tools Held for sale . Lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is
determined on the basis of landed cost of
purchase. Cost is determined on weighted average
basis.

vii) Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment considering the provisions of Ind AS 36

ijcéf linpairment of Assets’. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
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Minda Vast Access Systems Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair
value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be
tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows
from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets
(the “cash-generating unit”, or “CGU”).

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognized in
respect of CGUs are reduced from the carrying amounts of the assets of the CGU.

Impairment losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications
that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only
to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

viii)  Research and Development

Revenue expenditure on research is expensed off under the respective heads of account in the year in
which it is incurred. Revenue expenditure on research is expensed off under the respective heads of
account in the year in which it is incurred.

Capitalised development expenditure is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses, if any. Property, plant and equipment used for research and development are depreciated in
accordance with the Company’s policy as stated above. Expenditure incurred at development phase,
where it is reasonably certain that outcome of development will be commercially exploited to yield
economic benefits to the Company, is considered as an intangible asset and amortized over the
estimated life of the assets.

ix) Employee Benefits

Short — term employee benefits

All employee benefits payable / available within twelve months of rendering the service are classified
as short-term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages and bonus etc., are recognized in the
statement of profit and loss in the period in which the employee renders the related service.

Defined contribution plan:

Provident fund: Eligible employees of the Indian entities receive benefits from the provident fund,
which is a defined contribution plan. Both the employees and the Indian entity make monthly
contributions to the provident fund (with Regional Provident Fund Commissioner) equal to specified
percentage of the covered employee’s basic salary. The Company has no further obligations under the
plan beyond its monthly contributions.

Defined benefit plan:

Gratuity: The Indian entities provide for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement Plan (the “Gratuity
Plan™) covering eligible employees. The Plan provides payment to vested employees at retirement,
death or termination of employment, of an amount based on the respective employee’s salary and the

_tenure of employment with the Company. Liabilities related to the Gratuity Plan are determined by

_/,f?;__‘ﬁbti_:_ﬂiral valuation as at the balance sheet date.
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Minda Vast Access Systems Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

Other iong term employee benefit:

Compensated absence: Un-availed leaves for the year are accumulated and allowed to carried over to
the next year and are within service period of the employees in accordance with the service rules of the
Company. Provision for compensated absence is made by the Indian entities based on the amount
payable as per the above service, based on actuarial valuation as at the balance sheet date.

Other employee benefit plans:
Actuarial valuation:

The liability in respect of all defined benefit plans and other long term employee benefit is accrued in
the books of account on the basis of actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary primarily
using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each year of service as giving rise to
additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measure each unit separately to build up the final
obligation. The obligation is measured at the present value of estimated future cash flows.

The discount rates used for determining the present value of obligation under defined benefit plans, is
based on the market yields on Government securities as at the Balance Sheet date, having maturity
periods approximating to the terms of related obligations.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognized immediately in the Statement of profit and loss. Gains or
losses on the curtailment or settlement of any defined benefit plan are recognized when the curtailment
or settlement occurs.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income.
They are included in ‘other equity” in the statement of Changes in Equity and in the Balance Sheet.

X) Accounting for warranty

Warranty costs are estimated by the Company on the basis of technical evaluation and past experience
of costs. Provision is made for the estimated liability in respect of warranty costs in the year of
recognition of revenue and is included in the statement of profit and loss. The estimates used for
accounting for warranty costs are reviewed periodically and revisions are made, as and when required.

xi) Leases

Effective 1 April 2019, the Company has applied Ind AS 116 using modified retrospective approach
and therefore the comparative information has not been restated and continues to be reported under Ind
AS 17. The details of accounting policies under Ind AS 17 are disclosed separately if they are different
from those under Ind AS 116 and the impact of changes is disclosed a note below.

Policy applicable from 1 April 2019

At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract
is. or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control
the use of an identified asset, the Company assess whether:

_the contract involves the use of an identified asset — this may be specified explicitly or implicitly
= and should be physically distinct or represent substantially all of the capacity of a physically
& Co . distinct asset. If the supplier has a substantive substitution right, then the asset is not identified:
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Minda Vast Access Systems Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

— the Company has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset
through the period of use; and

— the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset. The Company has this right when it has the
decision- making rights that are most relevant to changing how and for what purpose the asset is
used. In rare cases, where the decision about how and for what purpose the asset is used is
predetermined, the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset if either:

« the Company has the right to operate the asset; or
« the Company designed the asset in a way that predetermines how and for what purpose it will be used

An entity shall reassess whether a contract is, or contains, a lease only if the terms and conditions of the
contract are changed.

This policy is applicable to contracts entered into, or changed, on or after 1 April 2019.

At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a lease component, the Company allocates
the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of their relative stand-alone

prices.

Policy applicable before 1 April 2019

For contracts entered into before 1 April 2019, the Company determined whether the arrangement was
or contained a lease based on the assessment of whether:

_  fulfillment of the arrangement was dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets; and
— the arrangement had conveyed a right to use the asset. An arrangement conveyed the right to use
the asset if one of the following was met:

o the purchaser had the ability or right to operate the asset while obtaining or controlling more than
an insignificant amount of the output;

e the purchaser had the ability or right to control physical access to the asset while obtaining or
controlling more than an insignificant amount of the output; or

e facts and circumstances indicated that it was remote that other parties would take more than an
insignificant amount of the output, and the price per unit was neither fixed per unit of output nor
equal to the current market price per unit of output.

Company as lessee
The Company accounts for assets taken under lease arrangement in the following manner:

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The
right of use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs
incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the
underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentive received.

_—__The right of use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight line method from the
/b ‘-}'}_; _._Ef_m_nmcncemem date to the end of the lease term. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are
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Minda Vast Access Systems Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

determined on the basis of remaining lease term. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically
reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the Company’s incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the fixed payments,
including in-substance fixed payments.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured
when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a
change in Company’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee,

or if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or
termination option.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-
use asset has been reduced to zero.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company has elected not to recognise right-of use assets and lease liabilities for short term leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low value assets. The Company recognises the
lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight- line basis over the lease term.

Under Ind AS 17

In the comparative period, a lease arrangement is classified as either a finance lease or an operating
lease, based on the substance of the lease arrangement.

Finance leases

Assets held under finance lease are initially recognised as assets at the fair value at the inception of
lease or at the present value of the minimum lease payments, whichever is lower. Lease payments are
apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate
of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognised in finance costs in
the statement of profit and loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case
they are capitalized in accordance with the Company’s general policy on the borrowing cost.

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable
certainty that the Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated
over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term.

Operating leases

Lease rental expenses from operating leases is generally recognised on a straight line basis over the
term of the relevant lease. Where the rentals are structured solely to increase in line with expected
general inflation to compensate for the lessor's expected inflationary cost increases, such increases are
recognised in the year in which such benefits accrue. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases
are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Changes in significant accounting policies
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Minda Vast Access Systems Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

amendments to standards are also effective from 1 April 2019 but they do not have a material effect on
the Company’s financial statements.

The Company applied Ind AS 116 using the modified retrospective approach. Accordingly. the
comparative information presented for March 31, 2019 is not restated - i.e. it is presented, as previously
reported, under Ind AS 17. The details of the changes in accounting policies are disclosed below.
Additionally. the disclosure requirements in ind AS 116 have not generally been applied to comparative
information.

Leases classified as operating leases under Ind AS 17

Previously, the Company classified property & equipment, buildings and land leases as operating leases
under Ind AS 17. On transition, for these leases, lease liabilities were measured at the present value of
the remaining lease payments, discounted at the Company's incremental borrowing rate as at | April
2019. Right-of-use assets are measured at an amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount
of any prepaid or accrued lease payments.

The Company has tested its right-of-use assets for impairment on the date of transition and has
concluded that there is no indication that the right-of-use assets are impaired.

The Company used a number of practical expedients when applying Ind AS 116 to leases previously
classified as operating leases under Ind AS 17. In particular, the Company:

— did not recognise right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases tor which the lease term ends within
12 months of the date of initial application;

— did not recognise right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases of low value assets (e.g. IT
equipment);

_  excluded initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial
application; and

— used hindsight when determining the lease term.

xii) Income taxes

Income Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in statement of profit
and loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity.

Current tax

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted and as applicable at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of previous years.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary differences to the extent

that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. Deferred

tax assets unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised / reduced

~—__ to the extent that it is probable / no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be
~//“yealised. Significant management judgement is required to determine the probability of deferred tax
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asset. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
reporting date. The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

Minimum Alternative Tax (“MAT?) credit entitlement under the provisions of the Income-tax Act,
1961 is recognised as a deferred tax asset when it is probable that future economic benefit associated
with it in the form of adjustment of future income tax liability, will flow to the Company and the asset
can be measured reliably. MAT credit entitlement is set off to the extent allowed in the year in which
the Company becomes liable to pay income taxes at the enacted tax rates. MAT credit entitlement is
reviewed at each reporting date and is recognised to the extent that is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which they can be used. MAT credit entitlement has been presented as
deferred tax asset in consolidated balance sheet. Significant management judgement is required to
determine the probability of recognition of MAT credit entitlement.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or

simultaneously.
xiii)  Segment Reporting

The Segment reporting policy complies with the accounting policies adopted for preparation and
presentation of financial statements of the Company and is in conformity with Ind AS 108.The
segmentation is based on the Geographies (reportable business segment) in which the Company
operates and internal reporting systems. The geographical segmentation is based on the nature and type
of services rendered. Based on the “management approach” as defined in Ind AS 108, the Chief
Operating Decision Maker (CODM) evaluates the company's performance and allocates resources
based on an analysis of various performance indicators by business segments and geographical

segments.
xiv)  Earnings per Share

Basic earnings/ (loss) per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable
to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.
The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for events of
bonus issue and share split. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings/ (loss) per share, the net
profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. The
dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless they have
been issued at a later date.

The number of shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted retrospectively for all periods
presented for any share splits and bonus shares issues including for changes effected prior to the
approval of the financial statements by the Board of Directors.

Xv) Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A provision is created when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event and it is more likely
than not that there will be an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits to settle such
obligation and the amount of such obligation can be reliably estimated. If the effect of the time value of
money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value money and risks specific to the liability.
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When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as finance
cost. These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect current management
estimates.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that have arisen from past events
and the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of future events
not wholly within the control of the Company. When there is a possible obligation or a present
obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or
disclosure is made.

Provision for onerous contracts, i.e. contracts where the expected unavoidable costs of meeting the
obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under it, are
recognized when it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle a present obligation as a result of an obligating event, based on a reliable estimate of
such obligation.

The Company does not recognise assets which are of contingent nature until there is virtual certainty of
realisability of such assets. However, subsequently, if it becomes virtually certain that an inflow of
economic benefits will arise, asset and related income is recognized in the financial statements of the
period in which the change occurs.

xvi)  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances on hand, cash balance with bank, and highly liquid
investments with maturity period of three months or less from the date of investment.

xvii)  Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Initial recognition and measurement

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are originated. All other
financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value
through profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or

issue.
Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets

On initia!l recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at

- amortised cost;
- Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period
the Company changes its business model! for managing financial assets.

R

| v
~
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A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:
- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash

flows; and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Financial assets are measured at
FVTPL. This includes all derivatives financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company may
irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirement to be measured at amortised
cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch
that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets: Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is
held at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is
provided to management. The information considered includes:

- the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice. These
include whether management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income, maintaining a
particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any related
liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets;

- how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company’s management;
- the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that

business model) and how those risks are managed;

- how managers of the business are compensated — e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value
of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

- the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such
sales and expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not
considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company’s continuing recognition of the assets.

Financial Assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and
interest.

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on
initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit
risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other
basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the
Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the
financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash
flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

- terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features;

- prepayment and extension features; and

- terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non recourse features).
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A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the
prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, which may include reasonable additional compensation for early termination of the
contract. Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at a significant discount or premium to its
contractual par amount, a feature that permits or requires prepayment at an amount that substantially
represents the contractual par amount plus accrued (but unpaid) contractval interest (Which may also
include reasonable additional compensation for early termination) is treated as consistent with this
criterion if the fair value of the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial recognition.

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets at
FVTPL

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses,
including any interest or dividend income, are recognized in profit or loss..

Financial assets at
amortised cost

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest
income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in
profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Debt investment at
FVOCI

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income under the
effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are
recognized in profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are recognized in OCL.
On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI are reclassified to profit
or loss.

Equity investment
at FVOCI

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognized

as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of
part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognized in
OCl and are not reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is
classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held for trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as
such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and
losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition

Financial Assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in
which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in
which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
and does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but
retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred

assets are not derecognized.

Binancial liabilities

)z
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The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled or expire.

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows
under the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the
modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet
when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and
it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments

The Company uses derivative instruments such as foreign exchange forward contracts and currency
swaps to hedge its foreign currency and interest rate risk exposure. Embedded derivatives are separated
from the host contract and accounted for separately if the host contract is not a financial asset and
certain criteria are met.

Derivatives are initially measured at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives are
measured at fair value and changes therein are generally recognized in profit and loss.

Impairment of financial assets
The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on:

- financial assets measured at amortised cost;
- financial assets measured at FVOCI - debt instruments.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost. A
financial asset is ‘credit-impaired” when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit- impaired includes the following observable data:

For recognition of impairment loss on financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that
whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has
not increased significantly, 12 months ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit
risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the
instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, then the entity reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12 months ECL.

Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured
as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the Company
in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive).

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet
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Loss allowance for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets. For debt securities at FVOCI, the loss allowance is charged to the Statement of the
Profit and Loss and is recognized in OCI.

Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured
as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive).

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets. For debt securities at FVOCI, the loss allowance is charged to the Statement of
the Profit and Loss and is recognized in OCI.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that
there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that
the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay
the amounts subject to the write.off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject
to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company’s procedures for recovery of amounts
due.

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for the
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk

exposure:

a. Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortized cost e.g., deposits and
advances

b. Trade receivables that result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115

c. Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPL.

The Company follows 'simplified approach' for recognition of impairment loss allowance on Trade
receivables.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk.
Rather, it recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right
from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines
that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk
has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if
credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of
the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from
default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
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ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls),
discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider:

=  All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and similar
options) over the expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the
expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to
use the remaining contractual term of the financial instrument

* Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the
contractual terms

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/
expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss. This amount is reflected under the head "other expenses' in
the Statement of Profit and Loss. The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is
described below:

® Financial assets measured as at amortized cost and contractual revenue receivables: ECL is
presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the
balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off
criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

* Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: ECL is presented as a provision in the
balance sheet, i.e. as a liability.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial instruments
on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is
designed to enable significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit impaired (POCI) financial assets, i.e.,
financial assets which are credit impaired on purchase/ origination.

xviii) Investments in mutual funds

Investments that are readily realisable and intended to be held for more than one year from the date of
acquisition are classified as current investments. All other investments are classified as non-current
investments. Mutual funds are measured at FVTPL.

xix)  Recent accounting pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA™) notifies new standard or amendments to the existin g standards.
There is no such notification which would have been applicable from 01 April 2020.
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2.2 Loans (unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)

(R, million)

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Security deposits 6 6
6 6

Also refer to note 2.37

2.3 Income tax assets

(Rs. in million)

Particulars

As at
31 March 2020

As at
31 March 2019

Advance income tax (net of provision for tax)

2.4 Other non-current assets (unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)

30

25

30

25

(Rs. in million)

Particulars

As at
31 March 2019

As at
31 March 2018

Capital advances
Prepaid expenses”™

AAmount in absolute Rs. 293,047 (previous year Rs. Nil)

2.5 Inventories

(Rs. in million)

Particulars

As at As at

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

(Valued at lower of cost and net realizable value)

Raw materials (including packing materials) 82 76
Add: Materials-in-transit 4 86 13 89
Work-in-progress 30 25
Finished goods 5 14
Add: Goods-in-transit 2 36 22 36
Tools 29 35
Stores and spares 1 2
182 187
2.6 Investments (fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL))
(Rs. in million)
As at As at

Particulars

31 March 2020*

31 March 2019

Investments in mutual funds - unquoted

105 Units (March 31, 2019: 19,632) Kotak Liquid Regular Plan Daily Dividend

Aggregate book value of unquoted other current investments
* Amount in absolute Rs. 127,820

2.7 Trade receivables

(Rs. in million)

Particulars

Unsecured and current
Trade receivables
Receivables from related parties (refer note 2.32)

- !i-lsu.'[;fb?'lq note 2.37

af N\
| . GURUGRI) T |

As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
180 244
9 34
189 278
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2.8 Cash and cash equivalents

(Rs. in million)

Particulars

As at
31 March 2020

As at
31 March 2019

Balance with bank
-On current accounts

2.9 Other bank balances

29

10

29

10

(Rs. in million)

Particulars

As at
31 March 2020

As at
31 March 2019

Balance with bank
Deposits due to mature within 12 month on the reporting date

2.10 Other financial assets

60

120

60

120

(Rs. in million)

Particulars Asat Asat
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Current
Interest accrued on fixed deposits 2 4
Advances to employees 2 1
Amount recoverable 3 6
7 11
2.11 Other current assets
(Rs. in million)
. As at As at
Sl 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Balances with government authorities 9 44
Prepaid expenses 6 4
Advances to suppliers 80 17
Claim receivable 14 30
109 95
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2.12  Equity share capital

(K i million)

Particulars At GO0
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
2.12.1 Authorised
50,000,000 (31 March 2019: 50,000,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each 500 500
500 S0
122 10s subscribed ally paid- up shares
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each (March 31, 2019: Rs. 10 each)
42,665,400 (31 March 2019: 42,665,400) equity shares of Rs. 10 each 427 427
427 427

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each (31 March 2019: Rs, 10 ench) fully paid up

As at 31 March 2020

As at 31 March 2019

Number of (Rs. in million) (Rs. in million)
shares
Balance as at the beginning of the year [face value of Rs. 10 each (31 Maréh 2019: Rs. 10 43 427 427
each)] o _
43 427 427

Balance as at the end of the year {face value of Rs. 10 each (31 March 2019: Rs. 10 each,]

2124 T rights attached to ity sha

The Cnmpnn}' Im i Slnblt class of equity slinres having a par valise of Rs. 10 per share. Ench holder

f a5 ibutions 1o equity sharsholders, In the event of liquidation of the Compuny, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining asscl

in prupumnn to the number of equity shares held by the sharchalders
¥ ;

of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. Duriny the year ended 31 March 2020 the company did not
14 of the Company. The distribution will be

As at 31 March 2020

As al 31 Mareh 2019

Number of shares

Name of sharcholders

Numibor of shires

% of holdings held held
Minda Corporation Limited, India 50% 2,13,32,700 -
Vehicle Access Systems Technology LLC, USA 50% 2,13,32,700 2,13,32,700
- 21332700

Minda Management Services Limited, India (merged with Minda Corporation Limited vide order dated 19 July 2019)

4,26,65,400

4,26,65,400



Minda Vast Access Systems Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

2.13 Other equity

(Rs. in million)

Particulars

As at
31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Securities premium reserve 125 125
Closing balance 125 125
Other comprehensive income - Remeasurement of defined benefit pians, net
Opening balance 2 (3)
Add / (less) : Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation 3) 1
Less: Transferred to retained earnings 5 =
Closing balance = 2)
Retain earnings
Opening balance 406 337
Add: Net profit for the year (58) 69
Add: Transferred from other comprehensive income (5 =
Closing batance 343 406

468 529
2.13.1 Earning per share

(Rs. in million)
For the year ended  For the year ended

Particulars

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Net profit attributable to equity shareholders

(Loss)/profit after tax

Number of weighted average equity shares
Basic
Diluted

Nominal value of equity share (Rs.)
(Loss) / Earnings per share (Rs.) (Basic)
(Loss) / Eamings per share (Rs.) (Diluted)

2.13.2 Nature and purpose of other equity

* Securities premium reserve

The unutilized accumulated excess of issue price over face value on issue of shares. This reserve is uti

 Remeasurements of defined benefit obligation

Remeasurements of defined benefit obligation comprises actuarial gains and losses and return on plan assets.

* Retained earnings

Retained earnings are the accumulated profits earned by the Company tifl date, less transfer to general reserves.

(58)

4.26,65,400
4,26.65,400

10
(1.37)
(1.37)

lised in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

70

4,26,65,400
4,26,65.400

10

2.84
2.84



Minda Vast Access Systems Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

2.14 Borrowings
i dn aptlivin)

Non-Curvent maturities Current maturities
As at Asat As at Asnt
Particulars Foatnole 31 Marech 2020 31 Maveh 2019 31 Muarch 2020 31 Mareh 2019
Secured
Vehicie loan
from banks [ 2 i I 1
a 3 1 i
Less: Amount shown under other current financial liabilities (refer to note 2.17) - = 1 |
2 3 5 _
Footnotes: (Ha i wrdllion)
S. No. Lender Terms of repayment Loan di Loan ding as Details of securify / guarantee
as at at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
1 Kotak Repayment terms: Quarterly instalments 3 4 | The loan 1s secured by hypothecation charge on respective motor vehicle
Mahindra Number of instalments: 16
Prime Limited  |Balance instalments: 15
Rate on interest: 9%

2.14,1 Movement in curvent anid non-current borrowings (s in mililon
[ - B 31 March 2020
Borrowings at the beginning of the year 4
Movement due to cash trasactions per the statement of cash flows (1)

Buarrowings al the end of the yeir 3




Minda Vast Access Systems Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

2.15 Provisions
(Rs. in million)

As at As at

Particulars
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Non-current
Provision for employee benefits

-Gratuity* 18 10

-Compensated absence* 9 13
Other provisions

-Provision for warranties (refer to note 2.15.1 below) 10 12

37 35

*refer to note 2.15.2

2.15.1 Movement in warrinty cost provision

The Company warrants that its products will perform in all material respects in accordance with the Company's standard specifications for the warranty period. Accordingly
based on specific warranties, claims history, the Company provides for warranty claims. The activity in the provision for warranty costs is as follows:

(Rs. in million)

Particulars As at Asat
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

At the beginning of the year 37 39
Provided during the year 6 13
Utilised during the year (13) {15)
At the end of the year 30 37
Current portion 20 25

10 12

Non- current portion
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Minda Vast Access Systems Privite Limited

Notes to the financiil sintements for the year ended 31 March 2020
2152 Emplovee Henefits

n) Defined contributlon plans

The Company's employee provident fund and Employee's stalc insurance schemes are defined contribution plans, The following amonnts fave been recogaised os expense for the year and shown under Employce benfits
expense in note 2.26.
phte dig s liom)

Particulnrs For the year endeit For thic year ended
31 March 2020 31 Mreh 2019
Contribution towards
-Provident fund 4 14
-Employec stalc insuronce I |
14 13

) Defined benefit plang Gratuiy

i ecordance with the Favment of Gty Act. 1972 the Compatty provides fur gy as o defined bencfit plin, The gratuity plan provides For o Tunip sum payment (o the employees ol (he time of szparation from the
service on sommplction df vested peried of ciplovinehl e five years The Tinbility of gramity plan i provided based oo getuariol vilumtion os at the end of ansh financial year bused pn which the Conipany contributes the
aseertined labilify 1o Life Bisirines Cotpomion of Tndia by whom the plan sets are mintained.

(B i dilliee)

For the year enilcil For thit year ended

Faricuiury 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Clunges in the present value of the defined benelit obligatiin is as follows:
Present saluc of defined benefit obligation at the begiiining of the year M 37
Interest cost 4 3
Acquisition Adjustment - ]
Current service cost 4 4
Beucfits paid (6) (5)
Actunrial foss / (gain) on obligation 3 i1}
Present value of defined benefil obligation ol the end of the year H 39
Changes In (he present value of the plon asset is as follows:
Fair valuc of plan asset at the beginning of the yar 26 27
Return on plan asset 2 2
Canrilitions - |
et en plan assel excluding amount gnised in nel interest exp )] -
Benefits paid e e = ) I B )}
Fair value of plon asset a1 the end of the year 3 26
ecanchlntion uf the present value of defined benefit alilipation and the fair valuc of the Plun assels:
Present value of defined benefit obligation al the end of (it vear 44 39
Fair valuc of plan asset ot the cnd of the year pX] 20
Net liabitity os at the closc of the year 2n (13)
Expenscs recognized in the statement of profit and loss:
Current service cost + 4
Past service cost = .
Interest cost i a
Expected retumn on plan asietd __’______U-z @)

i eitkeed in'h ( of profil ond loss: 6 5

ncome gnised in ofher comy ive lncome:
Actiiarial (ain) loss on defined benelit obligation 3 m
Retim-an plan paset escluding amaount ncog d in nict inlerest cxp — | = -
Exp gtised i other comprelicisive incame: 4 m
Actuarial assumptions:
Diiscait rate 6.55% 7.55%
Expécted rale of rewrn on play pssels (as funds managed by insurcr) 0.00% 0.00%
6,50% Year | 10 2: 8%

Expected salory increase rates
Thereaficr: 6.5%

Mortality 1007% of 1ALM 2012-14 100% of TALM 2006-08
Employoe atirition rale
-Up to 30 yem of nge 12.0% 12.00%
-From 31 years of age to 44 years of age B.00% RIMI%
-Above 44 years of age 5.0% 500%
Note:

The eslimates of Niture salary increascs considered in the actuarisl valuntion take into account inflation. seniority. promotion and other relesant factors such as supply and demand in the employment markel.

The discount rate is estimated based on the prevailing market yiclds of Indian Goemment sccurilics as at the balance sheel date for the cstimated tem of the obligalion.

Ex I (o) an PBO and Plan Assets gl tre mifhiveet)
Particulirs (R : | 3Nk lelﬁl 31 March 207 31 March zulul 31 March 2019 31 Mareh :ul
On Plan Present Value of Cliligeiton. 2 1 - - =
Sennitlvity annlysls:
Reasonably possible changes at the reporting datc to one of the releyant actuarial i holding other plions constont, defined benefit obligation would change as shown below:
o === T — For the year endled : For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Ingreate Deerense Inerease Dereise
Discount rate ( -/ + 1%) 40 48 36 4
Future salary growth ( -/ + 1%0) 48 40 43 37

Aliliongls the analysis docs not take into account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan. it does not provide an approximation of the sensitivily of the assumptions shown

Maturity profite:

The table below shows the expected undiscounted cash flow profile of the benefits to be paid te the current membership of the plan based on past sery ice of the cmployces as at the valuation date:
(R i ifhioen)

As al As at
o N March203) M Macchamy
1 vear ]
210 5 years 13 13
6 10 10 years 18 18
59 58

= _ﬂ:lthi;@qlw analysis does not take into account of the full distribution of cash {lows expectod under the plan, it docs not provide an approximation of the sensitivity of the nssumptions shown
WA N
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Minda Vast Access Systems Private Limited
Notes to the financiul statements for the year eaded 31 Murch 2020

¢) Other long term bencfit - Compensated nbsences
The Company operaies compensated absences plan. where in every employee is entitled to the benefit as per (he policy of the Company in (his regord. The salary for calculation of camed lcave is lasi drawn salary The

same is payable during the service. carly reti withd! | of scheme. resig) by cmployee and upon death of ciployee
An nclusrial valuation of Compensated abscnce Tas been earvied out by an indcpendent actuary on thie basis of the following assumplions:
Assumpti As at As at
ssumptions 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Discount rate 6.55% 7.55%
Expecied salary increase ralcs 6.50% Year 110 2: 8%
Thereafler: 6.5%
Mortality 100% of IALM 2012-14 100% of IALM 2006-08
Employee allrition rate
-Up to 30 years of og¢ 12.00% 12.00%
-From 31 years of nge to +4 years of aye 8.00% BO0%
-Above 44 years of nge 5.00% 5.00%

The isher long- leam benefii of cofipensated absence in FeIpect of emplovecs of (he Company os at 31 March 2020 amounis 1o Rs. 13 Millien (31 March 2019: Rs. 16 Million) and the cxpense recognised in the
statenwnt of profit and |oss during e scar for (he same anicints to Rs. | Million 1 Mareh 2019: Rs. 2 Million), [Gross payment of Rs. 2 Million (31 March 2019: Rs. 3 Million}}

Scnsitlvity analyis:
Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to onc of the relevant actuarial assumptions. holding other assumplions constant, holding olhier assumplions constant, liability for compensaled abscnees would change as

shown below:
For the year cnded For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Increnke _ Deerepse Ingreise Degrense

Discount rate ( -/ + 1%) 1z 14 15 16
Future salory growth ( -/ + 1%) 14 12 16 15
Mortality rate ( -/ + 10% of mortality ratcs) 13 13 16 16
Attrition rale - / + 50% of aurition ratcs) 13 13 15 16

Alihough (he analysis does not \ake into account of the full disiribution of cash Mlows expected under the plan. it does not provide on approxitmation of the sensitivily of the assumplions shown

Maturity profile:
The lable below shows the expecied undiscounted cash Mow profile of the benefits 1o be paid to the curreat membership of the plan based on past service of the employees as at the valuation daie:
(st il

Ayl
I — —— P ——— ¥ Murch 2009
| year 3
2 (o5 yoars L]
610 10 years [
[

More than 10 years

o
Alihough the annlysis does not lake into account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan. it docs nol providc an approsimation of the sensitivity of the assumptions shown

¢) Risk Exposure

Through its defined benefit plans, the Company is exposed 10 a number of risks. the most significant of which are detailed below
a) Aswet volatity
Thie plan Tiabilinies are caleulated using 8 divcount rate et with eference to bond viclids: if plan asscts unaderperfonm this yield s will crcate @ deficit. Mot of the plan asset investmends gro in fined Income seeunicy

with high grades and in govenmcnl secinithes, These nre subject lo unersal s risk and the fimll manages njerest mie risk switl derivatives to minimize rsk (o an scceptabile Jevel A partion of the Ry are invisted in
caiity sesurities and in alternative incstmany which lave fow Ialial with cquity itiet. The equity are expeciod 10 cam A retunl in eess o the discouinn tate aod contributy 10 the plan defich. Tha

Cantpavy intends to maintain the above ivesimea i i the contimubng vears.

b) Chanpes In discount rate

A decreang in discount rate will increase plan linbilitics. although this will be partially offset by an increasc in the value of the plon's bond holdings.
c) Infation risky

Tn the plans, the payment are 1ot linked to the inflation so this is a less materinl risk,

d) Life expecitiney
The plan ohlijutions arc 10 prov ide benefits for thc life of the member, 50 increases in life expectancy will result in an increasc in the plans' linbititics. This is p jcularly significant where i ionary i result in
higher sensitivity 1o changes in life expectaney

1 within an asset- liability matching (ALM) framzwirk that has been develaped o achicve lung 1em investments that are in line with W obligations under

The Company easires that the investnient positions are mmged
weel inlerest sccutitics with maturitics that match the benehit paynicals as

the caplenee benalis plans. Within this Framiework, the Company's ALK objective is Lo match assels (o {lic obligations by investing in long-temy fi
they fall duc and in the approprinte currency

This Company octively monkiors bow e duration gl ihic expected yicld of the investments are matchiing the expected cash cutllows arking fiom the cmployee benefit obligations. The Caipany has not changed the
procerses used 10 manaps it fhiks from peevious periods. The Company uses derivatives to manage sonie of il sk, Investments are well diversificd, sqch ihat the failure of any single imvesiment would not have o

snatcrial imwpact on the ovenll level ol ausens

% (GUFIUGHAM\] " o



Minda Vast Aceess Sysiems Privaie Limited
Notes to the financinl stalements for the year ended 31 March 2020

2.16 Trade payables
(Rs. i million)

Particulars Loey st
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Trade payables
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer to note 2.16.1) 46 5
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than mucro enterprises and small enterprises 274 333
320 338

2.16.1 Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the Micro, Smali and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
Based on the information available, there wre certuin vendors who have confirmed that they are covered under the Micto, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. Disclosures as
required by section 22 of “The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, are given below:

(Rs. in millien)

) As at As at
S:No. Particulars 31 Mareh 2019 31 March 2018
(1) the principal amount and the i t duc 1! remaini
unpaid to any supplier as at the end of year
- Principal amount 45 5
- Interest thereon 1
(i) the amount of intercst paid in terms of section 16, along
with the amounts of the payment made to the suppliers
beyond the appointed day:
- Principal amount 83 28
- Interest thereon = '
(i) the amount of interest due and payable Tor the year of
delay in making payment {which have been paid but
beyond the appointed day duting {lie year) but without
adding the interest specified under this Act | E
(iv)  the amount of interest acorued and remaining unpaid. | .
(v)  Theamount of further intetest remaining due and payable
even in the succeeding years, until such date when the
interest dues above tre actually poaid 1o the small
enterprise for thes purpose of disallowance as o deductible
I -

expenditure under sestion 23 of this Act

2.17 Other current financial liabilities
(K. in mitliemi

: As at As at
g 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Current maturitics of borrowing (1cfer note 2.14) 1 |
Employee benefit payable 19 15
Creditors for capital items 2 71
Royalty payable 1 L
23 88

2.18 Other current liabilities
(1w an million)

Particul As at As at
artieulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Statutory dues payable 5 11
Advances from customers 58 40
—— -
63 51

2.19 Current provisions
(s i million)

. As at As at
il 31 March 2020 31 Mareh 2019
Provisiou for employee benefits
-Gratuity* 3
-Compensated absence® 4
Others
_Provision for warranties (refer to note 2.15.1) 20 25
e ey === "=
27 31
#refer to note 2.15.2
2.20 Current tax liabilities
- B (s, an mitlion)
pm—— — N = o _ As at As at
i 31 March 2020 31 Mareh 2019

I |

13 13

_—Provisigy for Bicome 1ax {ner pf advance ax)
: 13 13




Minda Vast Access Systems Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

2.21 Deferred Tax Assets (Net)
A. Amounts recognised in statement of profit and loss
(Rs in nuillion)
Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Current tax
Currenl year - 21
- 21
Deferred tax
Cuirent year (28) (2)
(28) (2)
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss (28) 19
B. Amounts recognised in other comprehensive Income/ (expense)
(Rs. in nullion)
Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Remeasurement of post employment benefit obligation 1 -
Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income/(expense) 1 =
C. Reconciliation of effective tax rate
Reconciliation of 1ax expense and the accounting profit/ (loss) multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for the year ended March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018:
(RN milfion)
IFor the year ended For the year ended
Particulars Murch 31,2020 March 31,2019
Rate Amount Rate Amount
Profit before tax from continuing operations (80) 94
Tax using the Company’s domestic tax rate 2755% (24) 28.84% 27
Non-deductible expenses -0.92% ! 1% 1
Incremental allowance of research and development expediture 8.54% (7 -8.9% (8)
Tax-exempt income- dividend income 0.00% . -2.3% (2)
Others -2.31% 2 1% 1
Effective tax rate 32.52% (28) 20.18% 19
D (i). Movement of temporary differences- (1 rlioni
Particulars e pro:'::?rgll:)lsbscgt::ing Recognised in OCI i
1 April 2019 during 2019-20 31 March 2020
2019-20
Deferved Tax Assets
Acerued expense deductible on payment 2 | . 1
Provision for gratuity and compensated absences 8 . | 9
Unabsorbed losses - (39) - 39
Proviston for obsolete mventory 1 | - -
Warranty Provisims 13 2 - 8
A 22 (35) 1 58
Deferred Tax Linbilities
Difference in book written down value and tax written 2 (7 9
down value of property, plant and equipment
B 2 (7 - 9
Net deferred fax (A)-(B) 21 (28) 1 49

Section 115BAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961 was introduced by

the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance, 2019 Based on the cuirent estimate of expected timing

of exercising of the option under Scction 115BAA, the Company has not availed the said option for the year ended 31 March 2020 The Company will evaluate the

benefit of exercising the option in futurc years,

D (ii). Moyvement of temporary differences-

ity oennflion)

Particulars — |)r0:'{|::‘(:)(:'gll:)1cgl::ing Recognised in OC] L
1 April 2018 during 2018-19 31 March 2019
2018-19
Deferred Tax Assets
Accrucd expense deductible on payment 3 - 2
Provision for gratuity and compensaled abscnces 10 1 : 8
Provision for obsolete inventory mn - 1
Warranty Provisions 14 3 1)
A 26 3 - 22
Defervid Tax Linbilities
Differenee in book written down value imd tax written
Howr vatlue of propeny, plaot and quipment 8 6 2
B 8 6 - 2
Net deferred tix (A)-(B) 18 (3) 20

T
g




Minda Vast Access Systems Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

2.22 Revenuc from operations

(Rs. in million)

Particulars

Sale of products
Manufactured goods

Other operating revenucs

-Sale of scrap

-Service income

-Exchange fluctuations (net)

-Duty draw back and other export benefits
Other operating revenues
Revenue from operations

2.23 Other income

For the ycar ended
31 March 2020

For the year ended
31 March 2019

1,601 2,250
1,601 2,250
3 3

17 7

1 9

7 14

28 33
1,629 2,283

(Rs. in million)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2020

For the year ended
31 March 2019

Interest income:
-on fixed deposits
-on others
Provisions/liabilities no longer required, written back
Profit on sale of investments
Profit on sale of fixed assets (net)
Dividend income
Miscellaneous income

2.24 Cost of materials consumed

7 10
- 2
44 75
- 1

6 -

1 8

2 5
60 11

(Rs. in million)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2020

For the year endcd
31 March 2019

Raw materials consumed (includes packing material and components)

Opening stock
Add: Purchases during the year

Less: Closing stock

g2

76 84
1,225 1.626
1,301 1,710

82 76
1,219 1,634




Minda Vast Access S
Notes to the financial statements for the

2.25 Changes in inventories of finished goods,

ystems Private Limited
ended 31 March 2020

stock-in-trade and work-in-progress

(Rs. in million)

Particul For the year ended For the year ended
articulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Finished goods and stock in trade
Opening stock 36 47
Less: Closing stock 36 36
- (11)
Work in progress
Opening stock 24 25
Less: Closing stock 30 24
6 M
Increase / (decrease) in inventories 6 (12)
2.26 Employee benefits expense
(Rs. in million)
Parti For the year ended For the year ended
articulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Salaries, wages and bonus 236 262
Contribution to
- Provident fund and other funds 15 16
- Gratuity fund (refer note 2.15.2b) 4 5
Staff welfare 11 17
266 300
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Minda Vast Access Sysiems Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

2.27 Finance Costs
(Rs. in million)

For the year ended For the year ended 3

—{gsling expenses

Particulars 31 March 2020 March 2019
Interest expense:
on borrowings from others 2 1
e e ———
2 1

2.28 Other Expenses
(Rs. inmillion)

For the year ended For the year ended 31

Particulars 31 March 2020 March 2019
Jobwork charges 15 21
Consumption of stores and spare parts 10 12
Power and fuel 27 26
Packing charges 16 19
Rent (refer to note 2.3 1) 11 13
Testing and designing expenses 6 7
Repairs- buildings 6 6
Repairs- plant and machinery 7 10
Repairs others 8 fl
Travelling and conveyance 17 28
Legal and professional (refer to note 2.33) 19 20
Communication 3 3
Bad debts 1 -
Management fees 23 31
Insurance 5 4
Rates and taxes, excluding taxes on income 1 1
Warranty expenses 6 13
Loss on sale/discard of fixed assets (net) - 1
Royalty 2 3
Freight and forwarding 16 29
Bank charges - -
Corporate social responsibility (refer to note 2.34) 3 3
Sale service expenses 3 4
Miscellaneous 8 8
214 269

2.28.1 Research and development expenses o

The Company has incurred following expenditure on its inhouse Research and Development Center
(Rs. in million)

For the year ended For the year ended 31

Particulars 31 March 2020 March 2019
Design and Development expenses 3 3
Salaries 39 37
Contribution to provident and other funds 3 3
Travelling and conveyance 2 6
- 2

Legal and professional

~Miscellancous :
' 51

#+ Fxcluding finance costs. depreciation. amortisation and impairment. Capital expenditure incurred on approved Research and
Development Center during current financial year is Rs. 6 million (31 March 2019: Rs. 2 million).



Minda Vast Aceess Systems Private Limited
Notes fo the financial siatements for the year ended 31 March 2020

2,29 Capital pad other commitmens
Capital Commilments Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for Rs 4 million (March 31, 2019: Rs, 4 million)

2.3¢ Contingent linbilities (Rs. in millien)
Particulars LOgl SNt
31 Miwch 2020 31 Mavch 2019
Claims against the Company not acknowledged ag debts
a) Income-tax (Refer note & below) 11 13
b) Excise duty / Service Tax (Refer note b below) 19 1

2. Contingent liability Represents disputed income tax demands arising from disallowances of the Company's ciaim of certain expenses and penalty imposed there on under Income
Tax Act, 1961 The Company believes that such claims are allowable and has filed the necessary appeals with relevant authorities

b.Contingent liability also represents central excise demands and service tax demand arising on account of Package Scheme Incentive subsidy and compensation.

¢. Pursuant to recent judgement by the Hon'ble Supreme Court dated 28 February 2019, it was held that basic wages for the purpose of provident fund, to include special allowances
which are common for all employecs. However there is uncertainty with respect to the applicable of the judgement and period from which the same applies. The Company has
estimated the impact of the same from | March 2019 to 31 March 2020 based on a prospective approach and has recognized the same in the financial statements.

Owing to the aforesaid uncertainty and pending clasification from the authority in this regard, the Company has not recognised any provision for the previous years Further
management also believes that the impact of the same on the Company will not be material.

d. Additionally, the Company is invalved in othet disputes, lawsuits, claims, governmental and/ or regulatory inspections, inquiries, investigations and proceedings, including
comingrcial matters that arise from time o time in the ordinary course of business

The company believes that none of above matters, cither individually or in aggregate, arc expected to have any material adverse effect on its financial statements.

23

Lenses

The Company has adopted Ind AS 1 16 'Leases’ with the date of initial application being ! April 2019, Ind AS 116 replaces Ind AS 17 — Leases and related interpretation and guidance. The
Company has applied Ind AS 116 using the modified retrospective approach, under which the cumulative effect of initial application is recognised in retained earnings at April 1, 2019 As 8
result, the comparative information has not been restated. In adopting lnd AS 116, {he Company has applied the below practical expedients:

The Company has applicd the practical expedient to grandfather the definition of a lease on transition. This means that it will apply Ind AS 11610 all contracts entered into before 1 April 2019
and identified as leases in accordance with ind AS 17

The Company has only leasehold land which has been classified from Property, plant and equipmenit to Right of Use asset as on transition date. Since, there are no lease liabilities attached to the
leasehold land, other disclosures pertaining to lease liabilities are note given

Information about leases for which the Company is & lessee is presented below:

(R, in milttont]
___—-———-—'—'_.. As at
Right-of-use assets 31 March 2020

i = eSS RS - ——

Balance at 1 April 2019 -

Transition impact of Ind AS 116 29
Additions to right-of-use assets

Deletion of right-of-use assets

Depieciation charge for the year !
Balance at 31 March 2020 28

fls. i mifion)
As at
31 Maych 2020

=il ___—-___—______—--—-__._‘.___.—-____

-
Amounts recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss

-

Iy

I - ———

e
Interest on lease linblitics
Deprecintion expense
Expenses relating to low value and short term leases

1
11

There is no significant impact on adoption of Ind AS 116 from | April 2019

Most of the leases entered by the Company are |ory term in nature and the underlying leased properties are being used us manufpeturing plants The Company docsn't foresec any
major chanjtes in lease Lerii» oF the leases in the fureseable future as per current business projections after considering the impact of COVID-19.

Operating lease commitments under Ind AS 17
R i milfion)
Asat

Particulars - //’/w -
— 13

- —
Lease rent recopnised in the Statement oi profit and loss (Reler note 2 28)

- ———

2.32 Related Party Disclosures

A) Relnted parties and nature of related party relationship with whom transactions hnve taken place during the year

a) Key Managerial Personnel Mr. Himunshu Jain ( upto 25 May 209
Mr. Suntogh § Katre {CFO upto 5 Febryary 2020)
Mr. Sanjiv Kumar Jalan (CFO w.e [, § February 2020)
Mr. Navneet Ojha (Company Searetary upto & April 2019)
Ms. Komal G Heda (Company Secretiry w ef 27 April 2019)

b) Enterprise in whigh dircctors of the Company and Minda Corparation Limited, India
— their relatives nve ahle to exercise significant Minda Silca Engineering Limited. India
& Co, ;‘\inl\uence: Minda Stoneritlge nstuments Limited, India
/ e e 4 AN Minda SAI Limited, India*
{ “\ \, Minda Autamtotive Solutions Limited, India*
W PT. Minda Automotive, Indonesia
=2 Spark Minda Foundation
\ " ) Jaint Venturers Minda Corporation Limvited, India

Vehicle Access Systems Technology LLC, USA

E ' *merged with Minda Corporation Limited vide oreder dated 19 July 2019



Minda Vast Access Systems Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

B) Details of related party transactions during the year and outstanding balance at the year end :

(Rs. in million)

For the year ended

Parti
articulars 31 March 2020

For the year ended
31 March 2019

a) Revenue
Enterprise in which directors of the Company and their relatives are able to exercise significant influence:

Sale of products

- Minda Corporation Limited, India 28

. Minda Silca Engineering Private Limited, India 45
- PT. Minda Automotive, Indonesia 43

Reimbursement of expenses received
- Minda Corporation Limited, India 2

Sale of fixed assets
- Minda Corporation Limited, India -

b) Expenses
Enterprise in which directors of the Company and their relatives are able to exercise significant influence:

Purchase of goods
- Minda Corporation Limited, India 146
- Minda Silca Engineering Private Limited, India 26

Legal and professional fees

- Minda Corporation Limited. India 15
- Minda Automotive Solution Limited, India (now merged with Minda Corporation Limited) -
- Minda Management Services Limited, India (now merged with Minda Corporation Limited) -

Reimbursement of expenses
- Minda Corporation Limited, India -

15
83
117

251
71
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B) Details of related party transactions during the year and outstanding balance at the year end :
(Rs. in million)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Particulars

Management fees
- Minda management Scrvices Limited, India (now merged with Minda Corporation Limited) - 15
- Minda Coporation Limiled. India 12 -
- Vehicle Access Systems Technology LLC. USA 12 15

Reimbursement of expenses
- Minda Management Services Limited, India (now merged with Minda Corporation Limited) - 1

Corporate Social Responsibility expenscs
- Spark Minda Foundation 3 3

Key Management Personnel:
Remuneration
-Mr. Himanshu Jain* 1
-Mr. Mahendra Naredi* -
-Mr. Sanjiv Kumar Jalan* 4
-Mr. Santosh S. Katre* 1 -
-Mr. Navneet Ojha* - -
-Ms. Komal G. Heda* 1 -
* Excluding value of prequisites of telephone at residence, Car and reimbursement of expenses on conveyance. professional pursuit and uniform.

w N W

Exclusive of provision for future liabilies in respect of gratuity and leave encashment which are based on acturial valuation done on overall company basis.

C) Outstanding Balances pertaining to related parties
(Rs. in million)

Particulars Asat .
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Enterprise in which directors of the Company and their relatives are able to exercise significant influence:
Trade receivables
- Minda Corporation Limited, India 4 6
- Minda Silca Enginecring Private Limited, India 5 25
- PT. Minda Automotive, Indonesia - 3

Trade payables
- Minda Corporation Limited. India 47 53

- Minda Silca Engincering Private Limited, India 2 -

- Minda Automotive Solution Limited. India (now merged with Minda Corporation Limited) - 1
- Minda Management Services Limited. India (now merged with Minda Corporation Limited) - 5
- Vehicle Access Systems Technology LLC. USA 7 3

/BTN
o/ o\
« (auRucRAY) * |
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2.33 Auditor's Remuneration (excluding Goods & Service Tax)

(Rs._inmiflion)

Legal and professional expense includes auditor’s romuneration as follows:

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2020

For the year ended
31 March 2019

Statutory audit
Other services
Reimbursement of expenses

2.34 During the current year, as required under section 135 of the Act, the Company has spent Rs. 3 miltion (March 31, 2!

(CSR activity). Relevant disclosures for amount 1o be spent vis a viz amount spent during the year are as below

019: Rs.3 million) towards the corporate social responsibility

(Rs. in million)

For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Rs. Rs.
A Gross amount required (o be spend by the Company 3 i
B Amount spenl during the year ended 31 March 2020 (Rs. in million)
S.No, Project/ Activity Paid in cash Yel to be paid Total

1 Anificial limb fitment camp for disable "saksham" - 3

2 Treepantation and Others = -
- 3

Total

2,35 Income Tax Act, 1961 Sinco the faw requires existence of such information and documentation to be wnler'nporam'u
documentation for the transactions entered into with the associnted enterprises during the finangial year and expects suc
uneler the law The management is of the opinion that its transactions with the asspciated enterprises sre ot arm’s length so that the aforesald legis!

the finmcial statements, particularly on e wmount of tax expense and that of provision for taxation.

2.36  As per Ind-AS 108, Operating seuments have been defined based on the regylar feview by the Company's Chief Qperating Decision Maker ta assess th

A

us in natare, the Company is in the process of updating the
h records to be in existence latest by due date as required
ation will not have any impact on

w performance of each segment

and to make decision about allocation of tesorces. The Company business activities fall within single pritmiry t
Parts thereol. Accordingly, disclosures under I AS 108, Operating Segments arc i required to be made

Detail of revenue from operation at year end. property. plant and equipment and intangible assets are as foliows

viz, of {

bile Components and

(Rs. in millien)

Location

For the year ended

For the year ended

31 Murch 2020 31 March 2019
Revenue from operation
Domestic 1,523 2,146
Overseas
Asia (excluding domestic) 43 125
Europe 21 13
South Africa 41 .
Total 1.629 2,284
(Kt millien)
. As at As at
Logation i 31 Murch 2020 31 March 2019
Carrying amount of assets
Domestic 1,371 1416
Overseas
Asia (excluding domestic) 18
Europe 3 i
South Affica 8 -
Total 1,380
- = R et R I (Rs, in million
- === . . For the year ended For the year ended
Addition of Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets - 31 March 2020 31 Mach 2019
Domeslic
- Property, plant and equipment 369 38
- Intangible fixed assels . 4 2
373 40

Overseas
- Property, plant and equipment
- Intangible fixed assets

Segment revenue in the geop phical sey consitiered for disclosure is as follows -
- Revenue within tndia ( Domestic) inclutte sale 1o ehstomers located within India, and
_ Revenue outside Tndia {Overseas) include sale of products snufsetured inindin to customers located outside India.

Segment agsels in the ¢ fical sowments consid

Details of vevenue from major customers

Revere Gom custiniers of thie Company which is more than 10 percent ol the Company's total 1evenue constitite thiee customers with wlal tevenne amounting to Rs

2019: Rs 1,153 millions).

O\

|
* (GURUGRAN!] % |

/ oy

§ fior disclosute represents assets locate outsidlis India and sundry deblor balances against

export sales from India operations

002 millions (31 March
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2.37 Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management

&. Financial instruments — by category and fair values hierarchy
The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair value of ial asscts and ial liabiliti luding their levels in the fair valuc hicrarchy

. As on 31 March 2020

(Hx. 4 mliitond
Parliculars Carrying value Fair value messurement using
FVTPL FVOC1 Amortised cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial asscts
Nom-current
{iy Loans - - 6 6 - - -
Total - - 6 6
Current
{i) Immcstments - .- - - - - .
(i) Trade reccivables - - 189 189 - - -
(iiii) Cash and cash equivaleats - 29 29 - . -
(iv) Other bank balances - . 60 60 -
(v) Other financial asscts . - 7 7 -
Total - - 285 285
Financial liabilitics
Non-gurrent
Borrowings - = 2 2 - -
Total - - 2 2
Current
(i) Tradc payables - = 320 320 - -
(ii) Other financial liabilitics |- - - 23 23 - -
Totnl o I - - 343 343

As on 31 March 2019

(. in it

Porticulars Carrying viiluo Fair yalie measirement iiing
- FVTPL FVOCI Amortised cost Total Level | Level 2 Level 3
Financial assels
Non-current
(i) Loans - - 6 6
Total - - 6 6
Current
(i) Investments 24 - E 24 - 24 -
(i) Trade recenables . 278 278 -
(i) Cash and cash cquisalents 10 10 -
(iv) Other bank balances - 120 120
{v) Other financial asscts - 1 1 -
Total 24 - 419 443
Financial liabilities
Nen-current
Borrowings - - 3 3| -
Total = 3 ~ 3 .
Current
(i) Trade payables 338 338 . - -
(i) Other financial liabilitics - - 88 13 - . -
Total - - 426 426 ]

The management asscsacd that the fair values of shorl term financial assels and liabilitics significantly approximate their carrying amounts largely duc to the short-term maturitics of these instruments. Accordingly,
management has not diselosad fair values for finarigial instruments such as trade receivables, trade payablcs. cash and cash cquivalents. other current asscts, interest acerued on fixed deposits, other current liabilitics
ete

The fair value of the non-current financial asscts and liabilitics is included at the amount at which (he instrurment could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing partics. other than in a foreed or
liquidation salc.

Thers have been no transfers between Level 1. Level 2 and Level 3 for the years ended 31 March 2020 and 31 Maich 2019

Valuntion technique wsed 1o determing fuir value
Specific valiation techniques used to valiie non eurrent fiuancial mascts and liabilitics for whom the fair valucs have bocn determingd based on present values and the appropriate discount rates of the Company at

wach balance sheet dare Tha disconnt e 15 bastd o the weighted average cost of borrowings af the Company at cach balance shect datc.

Valuation processes

The Company lias an cstablished comtrl framewerk with respect to the measurcmints of the fair vahics, This includes a tcam that has overall responsibility for ing all sigs
reparts fo Senfor Management. The: feam regubarly reviews significant unpbservable inputs and valuation adjustments.

e

fair value and

=

Financinl risk nanngement

The Company has exposure to the following risks aristng from financial instruments.
- Credit risk .

- Liquidity risk . and

- Market risk - Forcign exchange

- Markel risk - Interest rate

Risk management {ramework

The Compam’s board of dircctors has everall rosponnibiliey for the otk and oyersight of the Company's sk managuticnl faniework, Th board of directors hve aatharised schliss manageancnt (o cstablish
the precesses, wha ensires that euscutive managennt controls risks through the mechanisin ol properhy defined framework.

The Company’s risk management policics 1 stoblished o adentify and analyse the risks faced by the Company. ta act appropeiate risks limits and controls, o monitor risks and adherenes 1o bmitt. Ruk
management policics arg revicied regularly 1o rafleer ehampes i market conditions and the Compam’s activitics. The Company, throuh its fraining snd manggement standants and pirocedire. aims o maintain a
iecrplinid and esnstmictivi eontrol civironment i which all gmplovess inderstand their mles and obligatiom
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b. Financiaf risk management (continucd)

(i) Credit risik

The maximum exposure to

credit risks is represented by the total carrying amount of these financial assets in the Balance Sheet:

(s am pillion)

Particulars

As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2019
Trade receivables 189 278
Cash and cash equivalents 29 10
Other bank balances 60 120
Lonns 6 6
Other finaneinl assets 7 11

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty t

from customers, loans.

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited as the Company generally invests in deposits with banks with high

The masimum exposure to the credit 1isk at the reparting date is primarily from tade 1
India, The Company does monitoy the ceonamic environment in which it operates. The Company mauages its credit risk through credit approvals,

worthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business.

Muovement in the loss allowance in respect of trade receivables:

receivables. Trade receivables are unsec

uses expected credit loss {ECL) mod

o a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations,

and arises principally from the Company’s receivables

credit ratings assigned by domestic credit iating agencies,

¢l to assiss the impairment loss or gain.
{ available externul and internal credit risk fctors sueh as
vear ended 31 March 201 % was Nil.

ured and are derived from revenut earned from customers primarily located in
establishing eredit limits and continuously monitoring credit

Credit risk s always been managed by the Company through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of cuslomers to which the Compony grants
credit terms in the normal course of busingss: On account of adoption of Ind AS 109, the Compuny
provision matrix to compute the expeeted credit loss allowanee for trade receivables and unbilled revenues. The provision matrix fakes into aceoun

Company's historical experience for customars, The reversal for lifotime expected credit loss on customer balances for the year ended 31 March 2020 and for the

The Campany hses &

Particulnrs

For the year ended
31 March 2020

For the year ended
31 March 2019

Amount written off

Balance at the beginning of the year
Impairment loss recogunised / (reversed)

Balance at the end of the year

(N

a) Expected credit loss for loans and security deposits

As at 31 March 2020

(s, tn il

Carrying amount net of

Particulars Asset group Estimated gross Expected probability Expected credit loss
earrying amount at of default impairment provision
Lass allowance measured at 12 month expected Financinl assets for which  |Loans to employee 2 0% - 2
aredit loss credit risk has not increased |Security Deposits 6 0% - b
significantly since initial
recogniion
1055 allowance measined at life-time expected Financial assets for which  [NA NA NA NA NA
credit loss credit risk has increased
significantly and not credit -
impaired
Financial assets for which  |NA NA NA NA NA
credit risk has increased
significantly and credit -
impaired
R
. '?:v- 1
[ -0\

% {cunuGRAw) %

'd
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As at 31 March 2019 (M. e anilfion)

Particulars Asset group Estimated gross Expected probability |Expected credit loss Carrying amount net of
carrying amount at  |of default impairment provision
default

Loss allowance measured at 12 month expected |Financial assets for which | Loans to employee 2 0% - 2
credit loss credit risk has not increased |Security Deposits 6 0% - 6
significantly since initial
recogntion
Loss allowance measured at life-time expected |Financial assets for which  [NA NA NA NA NA
credit loss credit risk has increased
significantly and not credit -
impaired
Financial assets for which  [NA NA NA NA NA
credit risk has increased
significantly and credit -
impaired

b) Expected credit loss for trade receivables under simplified approach

The Company's exposure to credit risk for trade receivables is as follows: (1t an mitlion)

Gross carrying t
Particulars As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2019
Current (not past due) 127 141
| to 30 days past due 48 129
31 to 60 days past due 12 7
61 to 90 days past due 1 -
More than 90 days past due* - |
Expected credit losses (loss allowance provision) - =
Carrying of trade receivables (net of impairment) 187 178

*The Company belicves that the unimpaired amounts that are past due by more than 90 days are still collectible in full, based on historieal payment behavior.
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b. Financinl risk manngement {continucd)
(ii) Liquidity risk

Liquidity nsk 1s the nisk thai the Company will encounter difficulty m meetng the obligauons associated with 1ts financial liabilities that are seitled by delivering cash or another financial asset The
Company’s approach to managing hquidity 1s to ensure. as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are fallen due, under. both normal and stressed conditions,
without incurring unacceptable losses or nsking damage to the Company’s reputation

‘The Company beheves that s hquidity positon, including total cash and cash equivalent and bank balances other than cash and cash equivalent of Rs 89 million as at 31 March 2020 (31 March 2019
Rs. 130 million,, anticipated future internally generated funds from operations, and is fully available, revolving undrawn credit facility will enable it to meet its future known obhygations in the ordinary
course of business. However. i a liquidity needs were to arise, the Company believes it has access 1o fi ing arr value of bered assets, which should enable it 1o meet 1ts ongoing
capital, operating, and other liquidity requirements The Company will continue to consider various borrowing or leasing oplions to liquidity and suppl cash requirements as necessary

The C ’s liquidity B process as d by ludes the following:
- Day 10 day funding, managed by monitoring future cash flows 10 ensure that requirements can be met
- Maintaining rolling forecasts of the Company’s liquidity position on the basis of expecied cash flows
- Maintaining diversified credit lines

L Financing arrnngements

The company had access 10 the following undrawn borrowing facilities al the end of the reporting period:

(Rs. i willion)
Particulars As at Asal
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
From Banks - Short Term 260 260
From banks - Long Term - -

I1. Maturities of financial linbilities
The following are the remaining coniractual maturines of financial liabilities at the reporting date The

4 '

are gross and
(s an eedlionn)

Contractual eash Mowi
As at 31 March 2020 Carrying smount | 6 months or less 6-12 months 1-2 years 2-5 years More than Total
5 vears
Financial liabilities - Borrowings 2 - - i - 2
Trade payables 320 320 - - - - 320
Other financial liabilives 23 23 - - - - 23
Total 345 343 - 1 1 - 345
(it eliion)
Contractunt cash flaws
As at 31 March 2019 Carrying amount | 6 months or less 6-12 months 1-2 years 2-5 years Movre than Total
5 vears
Financial liabilitics - Borrowings 3 - - 1 2 3
Trade payables 338 338 - - - 338
Other financial liabilities 88 88 = - s 88
Total 429 426 - 1 2 429
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b. Financial risk management
(iii) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises
two types of risk: currency risk and interest rate risk, The objeclive of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within
acceptable parameters, while optimising the return

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk thal the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates, The Company
is exposed 1o the effects of fluctuation in the prevailing foreign currency exchange rates on its financial position and cash flows. Exposure arises
primarily due to exchange rate fluctuations between the functional currency and other currencies from the Company's operating, investing and
financing activities

Exposure to currency risk
The summary of quantitative data about the Company's exposure to currency risk, as expressed in Indian Rupees, as at 31 March 2020, 31 March

2019 are as below:
(R, i million)

Particulars ' As at 31 March 2020
USD EURO YUAN

Financial assets
Trade receivables 8 2 -

Financial liabilities

Trade payables 31 5
31 5 -
(R, i miifl o)
Particulars As at March 31, 2019
USD EURO YUAN

Financial assets
Trade receivables 13 6 -

13 6 -

Financial liabilities
Trade payables 25 1

Sensitivity analysis
A reasonably possible strengthening, (weakening) of the Indian Rupee against below currencies at March 31, 2020 (previous year ended as on March
31, 2019) would have affected the measurement of financial instruments denominated in functional currency and aftected equity and profit or loss by
the amounts shown below This analysis is performed on foreign currency denominated monetary financial assets and financial liabilities outstanding
as at the year end. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant and ignores any impact of forecast sales
and purchases.

(0. i pibisen)

Particulars o Profit or loss Equity, net of tax
Strengthening Weakening Strengthening Weakening

i

1% depreciation / appreciation in Indian Rupees against following
foreign currencies:

For the year ended March 31, 2020
UsD - - -
EUR - - -
YUAN - - - -

For the year ended March 31, 2019
UsD

YUAN\

USD: United States Dollar, EUR iuro, JPY: Japanese Yen, YUAN- Chinees Yuan
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b. Finangial risk management (continucd)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk 1s the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will 1 b of ct in market interest rates. The Company’s manr nverest
rate risk arises from long-term borrowings wilh variable rates, which expose the Company to cash flow interest rate risk,

Exposure to interest rate risk

The Company’s intetest cate risk arises majorly from the term foans from banks carrying floating rate of interest. These obligations exposes the Company to cash flow
interest rate risk. The exposure of the Company s borrowing to nterest rate changes as reported to the management at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

(Hes, i il
As at
31 March 2019

As at
31 March 2020

Variable-rate instruments

[&]
w

Term loans from banks (Non current)
Term loans from banks (Current Maturitics)
Total

| —
N

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable-rate instruments
A reasonably possible change of 50 basis points (bps) in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased / (decreased) equity and profit or loss by the amounts
shown below. This analysis assumes that all other vatiables. in particular foreign currency exchange rates, remain constant.

(R i)

Particulars

Profit or loss

Equity, net of tax

50 bps increase

50 bps decrease

50 bps increase

50 bps decrease

Interest on term loans from banks
For the year ended 31 March 2020 - - - -
For the year ended 31 Maich 2019 - - . -

2.38 Capital management

For the purpose of the Company’s capilal management, capital includes issued cquity share capital, share premium and all other equity reserves attibutable to the
equity holders of the parent, The primary objective of the management of the Company’s capital structure is to maintain an efficient mix of debt and cquity in order to
achieve a low cost of capital, while tuking mio account the desirability of retaining financial flexibility to pursue business opportunitics and adequate access to
liquidity to mitigate the effect of unforeseen events on cash flows.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure. the
Company may retum capital to shareholders. rnise new debt or issue new shares.

The Company monitors capital on the basis of (he debt to capital ratio, which is calculated as interest-bearing debts divided by total capital (equity attributable 1o

owners of the parent plus interest-bearing, debts)

(8. i avilliving

Particulars As at As at
R 31 March 2020 31 Murch 2019

Borrowings (including current maturities) 3 4
Lizss - Cash and cash equivalent (including other bank (¢2)] (130)
balances) R

Adjusted net debt (A) (86) (125)
Total equity (B} . 895 956
Adjusted net debt to adjusted equily ratio (A/B) {0.10) (0.13)

2.39 [n March 2020, the World Health Organisation declared the COVID-19 to be a pandemic. Consequent to this, Government of India declated a nationwide
lockdown on 25 March 2020. which has impacted the busiuess activities of the Company. The Company has assessed the impact that may result from this pandemic
on its liquidity position, canying amount of teccivables. inventories, tangible and intangible 1ssets, investment and other assets / liabilities. In developing the
assumptions relating to the possible future uncertainties in the global economic condition because of this pandernic, the company has considered internal and external
information available till the date of approval of these financial result and has assessed its situation

In that context and based on the current estimates the Company belicves that COVID-19 is not unlikely to have any material impact on financial statements, liquidity
or ability to service its debt or other obligations. However the overall economic environment, being uncertain due to COVID-19, may affect the underlying
assumptions and estimates in future, which may differ fiom those considered as at the date of approval of these financial statements, The Company would closcly
monitor such developments in future cconomic conditions and consider their impact on financial statement of the televant periods,
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